MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF HENRICO COUNTY, HELD IN THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING IN THE HENRICO COUNTY GOVERNMENT COMPLEX, ON THURSDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2003, AT 9:00 A.M., NOTICE HAVING BEEN PUBLISHED IN THE RICHMOND TIMES-DISPATCH ON NOVEMBER 27 AND DECEMBER 4, 2003.

5 6

1

2

3 4

Members Present: Russell A. Wright, Chairman

James W. Nunnally, Vice-Chairman

Daniel Balfour Richard Kirkland

Gene L. McKinney, C.P.C., C.B.Z.A.

Also Present:

Benjamin W. Blankinship, Secretary

Lee J. Tyson, County Planner

Priscilla M. Parker, Recording Secretary

7 8

9

10

11

12

13

14

Mr. Wright - Ladies and gentlemen, welcome to the December meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals of Henrico County. Would you please stand and join me in the **Pledge of Allegiance to our Flag.** Ladies and gentlemen, before we begin, I'd like to make just one short statement. I know most of you have gotten materials that have been prepared by the staff, and I just want to say that the opinions evidenced there by the staff, are not necessarily the opinions of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Of course we make our decisions after we hear all of the evidence as presented, and we will decide the cases later on. Mr. Secretary, would you give us the guidelines for the meeting.

15 16 17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board, ladies Mr. Blankinship and gentlemen. The rules for this meeting are as follows. As Secretary, I will call each case. Then at that time the applicant should come down to the podium. I will then ask all those who intend to speak, in favor or in opposition, to stand and be sworn in. The applicants will then present their testimony. After the applicant has finished, anyone else who intends to speak will be given the opportunity. After everyone has spoken, the applicant, and only the applicant, will have an opportunity for rebuttal. After hearing the case, and asking questions, the Board will take the matter under advisement. They will render all of their decisions at the end of the meeting. If you wish to know their decision on a specific case, you can either stay until the end of the meeting, or you can call the Planning Office later this afternoon, or you can check the Planning Office website. This meeting is being tape recorded, so we will ask everyone who speaks, to speak directly into the microphone on the podium, and to state your name, and please spell your last name for the record. And finally, out in the fover, there are two binders, containing the staff report for each case, including the conditions that have been recommended by the staff. Mr. Chairman, we have two requests for deferrals on this morning's agenda, UP-

27-2003 HOLIDAY BARN KENNEL, and **A-143-2003 SUNTECH HOMES**, at 10600 Sherwin Place, in Magnolia Ridge.

Mr. Wright - All right. Let's do A-143 first -- do I hear a motion on that? And the other one is UP-27 -- do I hear a motion on that? Okay, please call the first case, Mr. Secretary.

Deferred from Previous Meeting

A -133-2003

MORGAN DAY requests a variance from Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a two-story addition at 9310 Newhall Road (Pinedale Farms) (Parcel 751-749-9502), zoned R-2A, Onefamily Residence District (Tuckahoe). The front yard setback, minimum side yard setback, rear yard setback, and total side yard setback are not met. The applicant has 43 feet front yard setback, 11 feet minimum side yard setback, 25 feet total side yard setback and 42 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires 45 feet front yard setback, 12 feet minimum side yard setback, 30 feet total side yard setback and 45 feet rear yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 2 feet front yard setback, 1 foot minimum side yard setback, 5 feet total side yard setback and 3 feet rear yard setback.

Mr. Wright - Please state your names for the record. Do we have any others who intend to testify in this matter? Would you raise your right hands, stand, and be sworn please?

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. T. Day - Travis Day.

Ms. Day - I am Pam Day.

Mr. L. Day - I am Lawrence Day. We'd like to build this addition so my sons can have two comfortable-sized bedrooms. The Newhall house has four bedrooms, with one I wouldn't call a bedroom. It's more like a postage stamp, and it's probably eight by six, if it's that. It's enough room for my son to get his bed in. It's a two-bathroom house, or a bath and a half, and what we're trying to do is add two bedrooms, add a large computer room where we can have the air conditioning set for the computers. The boys and their friends have six computers in one room at the house at the moment, and that's pretty much their hobby. They do play on their computers. The two boys living with them are more like brothers to them. It's a family unit; it's a new generation. A lot of kids now group around their computers and play in tournaments. Morgan's best friend Jock, who lives with them, has been to Dallas, Texas, several times. Morgan's been there. They go to these games. It's amazing to

79 see fifteen hundred kids in one room with all computers. Basically, we're trying to build a nice addition, keep it in the neighborhood, and there's not a lot else I can say. 80 81 82 Mr. Wright -Is this your home, Mr. Day? 83 Mr. L. Day -My sons' home, sir. 84 85 Mr. Wright -Your sons' home? And who lives there with them? 86 87 Mr. L. Day -They have two of their best friends living with them, Clay and 88 89 Jock. 90 How many would be occupying the residence? Mr. Wright -91 92 Four. They were in a rental house with some other friends in 93 Mr. L. Day -Henrico. Matter of fact, somebody reported them; they thought they were terrorists 94 because they never came out of the house; they only played their computers. One of 95 the other boys went and bought a house, and our son came to us, and since they were 96 going to VCU, and we had put the money away for college, we decided that the best 97 investment for the boys was to buy a home with the college money, since they were 98 going to VCU; it's not that much out of pocket, versus other things. So Morgan and 99 Travis went, we looked, we found this home in Pinedale. We really liked it. 100 immediately was informed that we should build an addition so that we could get a larger 101 computer room and bedrooms. Basically, that's what we're after, is the computer room 102 and two more bedrooms, with two baths. It will be an all brick structure. It will be a nice 103 home: it will be set up for them and for the computers, and if you've ever been in a 104 computer room, it gets extremely hot. Basically, the original house has got air 105 conditioning, but it's inadequate for what they need. The new room would give them a 106 large downstairs room with the computer room. The computer room will become the TV 107 108 room. 109 110 Mr. Balfour -What do your neighbors say? 111 I haven't heard anything from the ones that I've spoken with. Mr. L. Dav -112 The only time that any of them get to speak, they speak with Travis occasionally; he's 113 the only one who goes outside, and he smokes. The other boys stay in the house all 114 the time. 115 116 117 Mr. Balfour -We'll see what they say. 118 Mr. Wright -They're already living there, right? 119 120 121 Mr. L. Day -Yes sir, it's just that 122 123 Mr. Wright -So whether this is built or not, they're already living there.

124

Adding on is not a condition for their moving into the house.

105		
125	Mr. I. Dov	No oir
126	Mr. L. Day -	No sir.
127	Ma Dalfarra	
128	Mr. Balfour -	All we decide is whether or not you can slant this thing a little
129	bit from looking at the map	
130		
131	Mr. L. Day -	No, it's whether I have to slant the addition, or whether I can
132		out; the addition will be built. Something will be put in, and my
133	son would like to speak, bu	it in construction, we like to have everything square.
134		
135	Mr. Balfour -	I understand; I saw what your plan was.
136		
137	Mr. T. Day -	Like my dad was saying, it's mostly just, yes, I'm the smoker.
138		ot when I'm outside smoking. They're usually out doing yard
139		re really nice people, and aside from the gentleman he
140		anything about anyone having a problem with it. I'd talked
141		em, and they were, well, that's nice.
142		- , , , ,
143	Mr. Wright -	How long have you been living there, Travis?
144	g	Thom long have you been ming there, that of
145	Mr. T. Day -	September.
146	Wil. 1. Day	Coptombor.
147	Mr. Wright -	Since September of this year? Any complaints from any of
148	the neighbors about what y	
149	the heighbors about what y	you all do up till now:
150	Mr. T. Day -	No sir. My brother, after we had last month's meeting, I was
151	,	guy, I didn't hear this, and he was like, I was just out one day,
		going to be a boarding home. I was like, what it was going
152		
153		Aside from that gentleman talking to my brother one time,
154		er heard. The variance is just because we wanted to line it up
155		e so that everything ran flush, and it would line up with the
156		not, and we'd talked about moving it over before we had
157		here, and we wanted to keep it where it was, because if we
158		when you were in the kitchen, if you looked out the kitchen
159	window, you would just see	e nothing but the addition if we had to move it any.
160		
161	Mr. McKinney -	Mr. Day, do you, Clay and Jock, I understand live with you,
162	do you charge them rent?	
163		
164	Mr. T. Day -	Yes sir, they live with us; they pay part of the utilities, that's
165	it.	
166		
167	Mr. McKinney -	That's all? They don't pay you any rent, they just share in
168	the utilities?	
169		
170	Mr. T. Day -	Yes sir. We all split the utilities four ways. My brother and I
	•	•

pay the mortgage. 171 172 Mr. McKinney -You don't split the mortgage? Who pays the mortgage? 173 174 Mr. T. Day -No sir. Me and my brother. 175 176 177 Mr. L. Day -The mortgage is really not that much sir; we put a large down payment. 178 179 180 Mr. Wright -All right. Ms. Day, did you want to say a few words 181 The only thing that was mentioned last month was our sons 182 Ms. Day said they wanted to buy a house; my husband built the house that we've been in for 183 twenty-five years, which is where they were born and raised. It started out at about 184 1800 square feet, and he likes projects, so it's over 4,000 square feet, and that's what 185 they're used to, is their dad always having a project. So when we were looking at a 186 house that we could afford, it was with the understanding that because he can build 187 additions for less that if you'd go out and pay a contractor for, we would buy what we 188 could afford, and then take some money we'd set aside to get the addition the way we 189 were looking for. To have bought a home with that much square footage would have 190 put us in a much higher price range when we were house shopping. 191 192 193 Mr. Wright -All right, is there anything further you'd like to state in favor of your case? 194 195 196 Mr. L. Dav -I understand that the gentleman would be worried about four boys living in the house. We have neighbors that have a house that is rental property, 197 and they've rented it out to fraternities, and keg parties are going on all the time. These 198 boys don't drink; they don't make a lot of noise. They are in on their computers. They 199 don't park in their neighbors' front vards unless they have friends over. They had one 200 friend visiting with them who is in Baghdad now; he was home on leave. These are 201 quiet young men. They go to school; they work. They don't bother anybody. They are 202 in the house, playing their computers, and it's amazing to see. I should have brought a 203 picture of all five of them sitting down at the house at the time, playing with their 204 computers, and they have other friends that have the same situation throughout Henrico 205 This is a new generation of young people; they get together on their 206 computers. Like we used to go play football, they go in and play computers. 207 208 209 Mr. McKinney -Mr. Day, where'd the other one come from? It was four; you said five. 210 211 212 M. L. Day -Ben just visited; he wasn't living there – he was just at the

Mr. McKinney -

house.

213214215

216

So you've got five computers in the house?

Mr. L. Day - I think they've got six. They have computers that belong to friends of ours, but the boys don't live there.

219

220 Mr. McKinney - All of them are using the same service?

221

Mr. L. Day - Yes sir. They're quite into it; they're quite technical with their computers. They upgrade their computers every six months. Jock has been to San Francisco; Morgan's been with him. They go all over the country, to these computer tournaments. They play these games on the internet. I go over, and I watch, and I'm amazed. They're into these things; they have friends all over the country. When they were younger, we'd have internet parties at the house, with thirty people there, coming in from all over the United States.

229

230 Mr. McKinney - All of them have different majors? Or are all of them 231 computer majors?

232

233 Mr. L. Day - Different majors.

Mr. McKinney -

234235236

Mr. L. Day - Morgan, but not Travis. I went to the first one up in D. C., and like I said, I was amazed to go in the auditorium and see all these young men playing on these computers. The Canadians were there, doing a documentary. I talked to the people there. The Intel people were saying that this is where they get their computer techs from, the boys who are into these games, who play these games. They

They're not computer majors?

- are wholeheartedly into it. They have friends in California that they stay up late, so they can play with them. The fun part was when we had the boy from Texas, and his mother
- knew we were axe murderers and inviting her child to come to Virginia. But she finally allowed him to come, and he had a ball.

245246

Mr. Wright - Anything further? Now we'll hear from the opposition.

247248249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

Mr. Marlles - Good morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Board. My name is John Marlles, and I'm Director of Planning. At your last meeting, you deferred this case in order to give staff an opportunity to review the floor plans, you recall. I think it's pointed out in the staff report. Our review of the floor plans does indicate that these new rooms are not going to be fully integrated into the house. I think the County Administration actually has a couple of concerns about this request. One is, it has been our experience that when groups of college students rent homes or live in homes in single-family districts, that it does lead to enforcement issues, both with noise and maintenance of the property. From a staff standpoint, it is very difficult to deal with these situations. The County Administration has received some calls from neighbors expressing concerns with a group of college students renting homes in a single-family district. That's what we're talking about here, is a single-family, residential district.

260261262

Mr. Wright - Is that the issue here?

263	Mr. Moriloo	I haliava the intent of the maning district is an issue was sign
264	Mr. Marlles -	I believe the intent of the zoning district is an issue, yes sir.
265 266	Mr. Wright -	He can build this without a variance. Now what are you
267	going to do? Are you goin	
268	going to do? Are you goin	g to shut him down?
269	Mr. Marlles -	No sir. I think the issue here
270	Wii. Wailles -	NO SII. I UIIIIK UIE ISSUE HEIE
270	Mr. Wright -	(Interrupted, unintelligible) I'd like the Code to answer -
271		single-family residence? Would you give me that? That's
273		port, it says the testimony "indicates that the use will not be
274		of the one-family (single-family) residence
275		of a single-family residence.
276		or a single farmly residence.
277	Mr Marlles -	Well sir, I don't believe four college students living together
278		ion of a family as we would like to see it in Henrico County.
279	generally meete the delimit	ion of a farming do we would like to ooc it in Frontino county.
280	Mr. Wright -	That's as you would like to see it; I want to know what the
281	definition of a single-family	
282	are manager or an energie remain,	
283	Mr. Marlles -	Mr. Blankinship can read it from the Code.
284		
285	Mr. Wright -	I had this problem years ago. I sold my house over in
286		dual. I didn't know he was going to put his son and other
287	college students in there,	and they raised Cain, and I tried to get out of the contract on
288	that basis. I got no help fr	om the Planning Office. When I tried to say, "is this a proper
289	use," they said "well, we ca	an't say it isn't." So what's the difference?
290		
291	Mr. Marlles -	Again, Mr. Blankinship can read that definition
292		
293	Mr. Wright -	I tried to get the County to help me get out of the contract,
294	and I couldn't do it.	
295		
296	Mr. Marlles -	I think the other
297	N. N. 16	
298	Mr. McKinney -	Suppose it was four brothers living in there?
299	N.A. N.A. JI	1.052-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.25-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.20-1.25-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.05-1.0
300	Mr. Marlles -	I think the other issue here, and again, I think it's pointed out
301	•	whether or not there is a hardship in this case, and obviously
302	·	the County Administration, I think would agree with this, sir
303		
304	Mr Wright	That's for us to decide. That's not for the staff to decide.
305 306	Mr. Wright -	That's for us to decide. That's flot for the stall to decide.
300	Mr. Marlles -	the County Administration, sir, and staff believes
307	that there is not a hardship	
300	mat more is not a natustill	/ HOIG.

200		
309 310	Mr. Wright -	So you're making a legal decision?
311	Wii. Wright -	oo you're making a legal decision:
312	Mr. Marlles -	No sir. It is our recommendation and our opinion.
313	mainec	The entries our recommendation and ear opinion
314	Mr. Wright -	Everybody's got an opinion, but you're not the court.
315	3	
316	Mr. Marlles -	No sir.
317		
318	Mr. Wright -	What's the definition, Mr. Blankinship?
319		
320	Mr. Blankinship -	The definition of "family," I think, is the most pertinent thing
321	•	rson living alone, or any number of persons living together as
322		t, including domestic servants, caregivers, foster children and
323		ersonnel in a group care facility." The term "family" "shall not
324	include a fraternity, sorority	y, club, convalescent or nursing home," and it goes on.
325		
326	Mr. Wright -	Well, have you said anything that would indicate that this
327	• •	't see anything there that says you can't have four individuals
328	•	n't have to be married; my golly, nowadays you've got people
329	· ·	voman not married – is that against the intent of a one-family
330	residence?	
331	M Di li li	
332	Mr. Blankinship -	It can be a difficult judgment call for us to make, whether a
333	• •	s a single housekeeping unit. As you pointed out, it is the
334	Board that has that discret	ion.
335	Mr Wright	Wall I don't know. It's being done all over the County, and I
336 337	Mr. Wright -	Well I don't know. It's being done all over the County, and I be going to do about it. Are you going to go in and root these
338	_	got individuals living, rather than married couples living in a
339		say "you can't do that, because that violates the intent of a
340	one-family, single-family re	
341	one family, single family re	oductios.
342	Mr. Marlles -	All staff is trying to point out is, this situation has led to
343	enforcement issues in other	
344		,
345	Mr. Wright -	I understand that.
346	9	
347	Mr. Marlles -	single-family neighborhoods. There are other parts
348		e think it is appropriate for groups of college students and this
349	_	Single-family districts, though, it does lead to problems.
350	,,	5 , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
351	Mr. Wright -	I understand, you can have problems, especially if they
352	•	u could have that problem with a family living in there when
353		n and have parties, you know, you could have all those
		eally distinguish it; it probably means that it's more prevalent.

355		
356 357	Mr. Marlles -	Staff would agree with that.
358	Mr. Wright -	Okay. Anything else?
359	3 -	3 - 3
360	Mr. Marlles -	No sir.
361		
362	Mr. Wright -	Oh, thanks. Now, anyone else desire to speak in
363	opposition? Hearing none	, then the proponents, you have a right to rebut.
364		
365	(Unintelligible, away from	n microphone)
366		
367	Mr. T. Day -	The only thing I wanted to say is in regards to what he's
368	referring to, four college	students living together, we don't even have people over,
369	really. We've had maybe	one cook-out since we moved in. Like my dad was saying,
370	we spend most of our time	e with our head-phones on, playing on our computers. It's not
371	a frat house. What we're	doing, the reason the addition, upstairs the addition isn't tied
372	in is because my parents	said that it would be easier down the road for resale if the
373	addition was built and cou	uld be used as an in-law suite, so there's a full bath upstairs
374	and the two bedrooms, b	ut no walk-through door. The walk-through door that leads
375	from the house to the addi	tion is downstairs where the laundry room is.
376		
377	Mr. Wright -	You only have one kitchen in the
378		
379	Mr. T. Day -	Yes sir.
380		
381	Mr. Wright -	In my understanding of a single-family dwelling, you can only
382	have one kitchen.	
383		
384	Mr. Blankinship -	That's correct. There's no space shown in the plan that
385	would easily be converted	to a kitchen either; that's another thing we reviewed for.
386		
387	Mr. T. Day -	The addition is just for us, my brother's bedroom. Right now
388		He's got maybe a foot or two walking room, to move around,
389		e were planning on putting the addition on the house. That's
390	kind of what we were think	ang.
391		
392	Mr. Wright -	All right. Mr. Day, do you have something further you want
393	to say in rebuttal?	
394		
395	Mr. L. Day -	Basically, the reason that there's only one door into the
396		at we all know that if you cut up a bedroom and have a
397	•	an addition, you lose value in the property. If I thought that it
398		advantage, I would have put a doorway upstairs, but I didn't
399	see anywnere that I wante	ed to lose space for a staircase. The staircase going up, and

400

the hall take up six feet off the addition, right off the bat, more than that really.

401 402 403 404 405 406 407	twenty-two feet, and ther remodeled. We've already the bathrooms; we've don- lights in all the upstairs, property as I would think of	t looking at the twenty-eight feet, we're cutting it down to the is no plan for a kitchen. The kitchen has already been by done extensive work to this home. We've remodeled both of the kitchen; I've done recessed lighting in the den, fans and recessed lighting in the kitchen. This is not an investment of as a rental property that I've bought. This is my sons' home. gain, I repeat, my sons' home.
408 409	Mr. McKinney -	When did you buy this, Mr. Day?
410 411 412	Mr. L. Day - The kitchen's been refaced	In September, and we've already remodeled the kitchen. d with
413 414 415	Mr. McKinney -	At the first part of September?
416 417	Mr. L. Day -	September 11.
418 419 420	Mr. McKinney - right on it.	Because you've got plans dated September 29, so you got
421 422 423 424 425 426	put his friends, because bedrooms, and he took the	Yes sir. If you saw the bedroom that my youngest is – he he knew we were going to build the addition, in the larger e postage stamp, that once the addition is built, will be turned r an office. It's basically a walk-in closet, compared to my
427	Mr. Wright -	All right. Anything else? That concludes the testimony.

Mr. Wright - All right. Anything else? That concludes the testimony.
Thank you very much, everybody for appearing. The Board will make a decision at the
end of the docket.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Balfour, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **granted** application **A-133-2003** for a variance to build a two-story addition at 9310 Newhall Road (Pinedale Farms) (Parcel 751-749-9502). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. Only the improvements shown on the plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

2. The new construction shall match the existing dwelling as nearly as practical.

443	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
444	Negative:		0
445	Absent:		0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

New Applications

A -140-2003

CAROLYN KLOPSTEIN requests a variance from Section 24-95(i)(1) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a covered stoop at 3709 Huntmaster Court (Foxhall) (Parcel 729-758-8565), zoned R-2AC, One-family Residence District (Conditional) (Three Chopt). The front yard setback is not met. The applicant has 40 feet front yard setback, where the Code requires 45 feet front yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 5 feet front yard setback.

Mr. Wright - Does anyone else desire to speak? Would you raise your right hand and be sworn please?

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Klopstein - I do. Michael Klopstein. Just want to tell you about the property we're building, and would love to have Carolyn here, my wife. She's got a lot more passion about building her dream house and her dream of an up front porch, so clearly, as we stated in the beginning, there's a 5-foot setback that's the difference here, and clearly that's the dream that we have, is to have a front porch, just for protection in terms of kids coming in and out for the front porch access for the property that we plan to live in for a very, very long time.

Mr. Wright - Tell us just what you propose to do.

Mr. Klopstein - The plan is similar to the one in the neighbor's right next to us. There are two homes right next to us, and I don't know if they took a picture of the cul-de-sac we're on, but it would be to the right of the picture you're looking at there, but there are two other homes right next to that which have front porches almost exactly how we're looking to build ours.

Mr. Wright - What type construction will this porch be? How will it be constructed? Will it be something that will be consistent with the house?

Mr. Klopstein - Absolutely, yes. There will be pillars in the front. There will be steps going up; they're not constructed as of yet, but you see in this picture here, the steps going up to the two front doors there, and then directly above those steps, there will be a landing area, and then right above that will be the front porch. So consistent connected right with the front porch, so it's an overhang stoop that will simply keep you

493 494	protected from the elemen	ts and the rain and whatnot.
495 496 497 498	Mr. Wright - Chesapeake Bay Resource lot.	I understand you may have some problem with the ce Protection Act, as to where the house was located on the
499 500 501 502	drop-off, and for kids and	I'm not familiar with that sir. Oh yes, on the back side, the nere is a marsh on the back side, so it's actually a pretty steep what-not, he's had to push it up a little bit to kind of get that emplete drop-off in the back of the marsh, that's correct sir.
503 504 505 506	Mr. Wright - further forward on the lot.	So that would necessitate the house being constructed
507 508 509 510 511	•	That's the way I understand it. Any of the builders could och better, but that's when he built the home, his intention was bit of back yard for the kids and kind of a playground in back. tion.
512 513	Mr. Wright -	What is the exact size of this proposed porch?
514 515 516 517 518 519	the front, it would be exact be a landing area in front front doors, almost exactly	I do not have the exact size. If you go back to the picture of tly the two front doors that you see there, it would simply just of there, and then the stoop would just carry over those two alongside where the two sides of that door is, would just be a hat window on top and on top of the doors.
520 521	Mr. McKinney -	So it would not exceed six feet?
522 523	Mr. Klopstein -	No sir.
523 524 525 526	Mr. Wright - without a variance?	So you could build a four-by-six porch, Mr. Blankinship,
527 528 529		Yes sir, a six-foot wide porch can extend up to four feet into ve feet, so I guess that's the difference.
530 531 532	Mr. Wright - exceeds it by one foot, he'	This says a five-foot front yard setback. I thought if he's s got to get the whole five feet approved.
533	Mr. Blankinship -	Right, as long as we're doing the variance, it's the same.
534 535	Mr. Wright -	So it's actually one foot into the
536 537 538	Mr. Blankinship -	One foot beyond what he could do.

539	Mr. Klopstein -	Correct, correct sir.	
540			
541	Mr. Wright -	Any further questions of members of the Board?	
542			
543	Mr. Blankinship -	May I ask one question, Mr. Chairman? How many	y of the
544	other houses on that stree	t have got similar front porches, do you know?	
545			
546	Mr. Klopstein -	I couldn't give you the exact number; there's three	homes
547	•	c at this picture. All the other ones in the cul-de-sac,	
548		s not. The one right next to us does have a front porch	
549	•	J	
550	Mr. Blankinship -	I meant to photograph that while we were on the site.	
551		4	
552	Mr. Wright -	Is it the same size porch that he's proposing to bu	ild that
553	they've got?	to it are came dies poron and most proposing to be	
554	andy to got.		
555	Mr Klonstein -	Yes, the entry is pretty much the same. Colonia	I Home
556	•	n, so their front porches would look pretty close to w	
557	neighboring properties loo	•	mat the
558	ricigliborning properties loo	K IIKC.	
559	Mr. Wright -	Does the cul-de-sac impact this at all, Mr. Blankins	shin2 I
560	was just trying to see that	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	onip: i
561	was just trying to see that	nom the plat.	
	Mr. Blankinship -	I don't believe so.	
562	wii. Biarikiiistiip -	r don't believe so.	
563	Mr. Wright -	Any further questions of members of the Board or th	o otoff?
564	•	Any further questions of members of the Board or the	e stair!
565	Anyone here in opposition	to this request?	
566	After an advertised public	beging and an a mation by Mr. Numally accorded	ما ۱۸ بر ما ا
567	•	hearing and on a motion by Mr. Nunnally, seconded	•
568		nted application A-140-2003 for a variance to build a	
569	•	r Court (Foxhall) (Parcel 729-758-8565). The Board	granted
570	the variance subject to the	e following conditions:	
571	4 The second of	and the House take the conference of the House control of the conference of	1
572	1. The new construction	on shall match the existing dwelling as nearly as praction	cai.
573	O The control ob all	handa alamad kana hataa Calaa a faasaa a 20h Olaa al	Cl
574		be developed in substantial conformance with the pl	
575	• •	substantial changes or additions to the layout may be	e made
576	without the approval of the	Board of Zoning Appeals.	
577			_
578		ır, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
579	Negative:		0
580	Absent:		0
581			
582		quest, as it found from the evidence presented that, du	
583	•	the subject property, strict application of the Count	•
584	would produce undue hard	dship not generally shared by other properties in the ar	ea, and

authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

UP- 27-2003

HOLIDAY BARN KENNEL requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-52(c) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to expand the existing kennel at 3800 Mountain Road (Parcel 765-771-4745), zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Brookland).

Upon a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by Mr. Nunnally, the Board **deferred** application **UP-27-2003** for a conditional use permit to expand the existing kennel at 3800 Mountain Road (Parcel 765-771-4745). The case was deferred from the December 18, 2003, until the January 22, 2004, meeting at the request of the applicant for additional time to prepare a variance request.

Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright 5
Negative: 0
Absent: 0

A -141-2003

MAVIS AGYEMANG AND GEORGE DJIMAH request a variance from Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a sunroom and deck at 2304 Woodman Hills Court (Woodman Hills) (Parcel 774-764-6665), zoned R-3C, One-family Residence District (Conditional) (Fairfield). The rear yard setback is not met. The applicants propose 28 feet rear yard setback for the sunroom, where the Code requires 40 feet rear yard setback. The applicants request a variance of 12 feet rear yard setback. The applicants also propose 28 feet rear yard setback for the deck, where the Code requires 30 feet rear yard setback. The applicants request a variance of 2 feet rear yard setback.

Mr. Wright - Does anyone else desire to speak? Would you raise your right hand and be sworn please?

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Britt - I do. George Britt, with Melani Bros.; we're the contractor for the applicant. Very simply, George and Mavis would like to build a sunroom. The sunroom in this project is located on their existing deck, a size of ten by twelve. Looking from the back of the house, to the left of that sunroom, they want to add a twelve by twelve additional deck, since we're covering up the existing deck that they have. They just want to build a reasonably sized sunroom on their home, ten by twelve, and have some deck left over.

Mr. Wright - Is that the deck you're referring to right there?

631	Mr. Britt -	Yes, that is exactly where the actual room will go.
632		
633	Mr. Wright -	So you want to put the sunroom where the deck is, is that it?
634		
635	Mr. McKinney -	So they'll be the same size?
636		
637	Mr. Britt -	Exactly the same size as the deck, and then the additional
638	deck goes directly adjacen	t to it.
639	NA: NA/wisslad	Whether he sated to the consequence of the conseque
640	Mr. Wright -	What's located to the rear of your property?
641	Mr. Britt -	It looks like nothing but woods book there. There's another
642		It looks like nothing but woods back there. There's another
643 644	dwelling, fairly large lot it lo	oks like.
645	Mr. Wright -	Is there any screening to the rear of your property? Between
646	your property and the other	
647	your property and the other	property:
648	Mr. Britt -	Of course this isn't my property, but the property. There's
649	woods, a little barrier of wo	
650		
651	Mr. McKinney -	The houses behind you also have woods.
652		,
653	Mr. Britt -	It looks like, not including the applicant's property, about
654	another 40-so feet of woo	ds in that area before you get to a clearing where the other
655	dwelling's located.	
656		
657	Mr. Wright -	What type of construction did you propose for this addition?
658		
659	Mr. Britt -	First of all, it will match according to the homeowners
660	•	ng, there's an 18-inch knee-wall. It's of course a sunroom.
661	J	ay around, with glass transoms, shingles to match the roof and
662	per County requirements, t	prick piers will be added.
663	N.A. VAININA	Var. nation there is a condition accorded for this case if it's
664	Mr. Wright -	You notice there is a condition suggested for this case, if it's
665	approved, that new constitu	ection will match the existing dwelling as near as practical.
666 667	Mr. Britt -	Yes, and according to the requirements of the homeowners
668		exact siding to match, the exact shingle roofline structure, will
669	match the existing structure	
670	mater the existing structure	23 III the heighborhood.
671	Mr. Wright -	Is it a one-story addition?
672	······ ·······························	io it a one otery addition.
673	Mr. Britt -	One story sir, yes.
674		, - · · , , - · ·
675	Mr. Wright -	Any further questions of members of the Board or the staff?
676	Anyone here in opposition	
	- • • •	-

 After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. McKinney, seconded by Mr. Kirkland, the Board **granted** application **A-141-2003** for a variance to build sunroom and deck at 2304 Woodman Hills Court (Woodman Hills) (Parcel 774-764-6665). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. The new construction shall match the existing dwelling as nearly as practical.

2. The property shall be developed in substantial conformance with the plan filed with the application. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals.

Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
Negative:		0
Absent:		0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -142-2003

THOMAS P. OGDEN requests a variance from Section 24-94 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a screened porch on the existing deck at 10901 Hunting Hollow Court (Deer Springs) (Parcel 770-769-3291), zoned R-2AC, One-family Residence District (Conditional) (Brookland). The rear yard setback is not met. The applicant has 37 feet rear yard setback, where the Code requires 45 feet rear yard setback. The applicant requests a variance of 8 feet rear yard setback.

Mr. Wright - Does anyone else desire to speak? Would you raise your right hand and be sworn please?

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

Mr. Ogden - I do. Thomas P. Ogden. We would like to put a twelve by twelve porch on our existing deck; the existing deck is 12 by 24. That will be all vinyl to match the house. The issue is the setback; it is not met by approximately eight feet. We've notified all the adjacent neighbors with a memo that we wrote to them back in mid-November. We've heard from two of them, the one immediately behind us, that's the Thornes, and they have no problem with it, and the person to the immediate right, looking at the house, and he had no problem with it.

Mr. Wright -

Is there any screening between your house and the house to

the rear of you? Trees, bushes, etc.? 723 724 Mr. Ogden -Yes there is. You can see in the picture that it's guite dense 725 726 in there, and the neighbor has a fence also there too. 727 728 Mr. Wright -Might be difficult for the neighbor to see the rear of your house there. 729 730 731 Mr. Ogden -Only the one directly behind us has a view of the house. 732 733 Mr. Wright -What type of construction will be proposed? 734 Mr. Ogden -It will be white vinyl to match the siding on the house, and 735 the shingles will be to match the shingles on the top of the two-story house. 736 737 Mr. Wright -This will be a two-story addition? 738 739 No, one story, twelve by twelve on the left side as you're 740 Mr. Ogden looking from the front of the house. It's a screened in porch, not a sunroom. It will not 741 742 have glass, just screen. 743 Mr. Wright -Any further questions of members of the Board or of the 744 staff? Anyone here in opposition to this request? 745 746 Mr. Chairman, I did receive one phone call from one of the 747 Mr. Blankinship people in the subdivision to the rear of this property, expressing concern about the 748 wetlands. He just asked that I make sure that the matter came before the Board. I 749 explained to him that, and let me just confirm with the applicant, you're not changing the 750 structure on the ground. The same piers that are there now are going to be there in the 751 future. Do you plan on building a fence? He was very concerned about building a 752 fence, and I told him that wasn't a matter before the Board, but he was very concerned. 753 754 755 Mr. Ogden -No. That is one of the issues for the screened porch, because the wetlands draw a lot of mosquitoes and insects back there. If you went 756 there right now, you'd see water above the ground right now. 757 758 Mr. Wright -It sounds like there is nothing that you're proposing to do 759 that would affect the wetlands. 760 761 That's my opinion, but he was very concerned that it be 762 Mr. Blankinship brought before you. 763 764 All right. Thank you very much for appearing. 765 Mr. Wright -That concludes the case. 766

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **granted** application **A-142-2003** for a variance to build a screened porch on the existing deck at 10901 Hunting Hollow Court (Deer Springs) (Parcel 770-769-3291). The Board granted the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. Only the improvements shown on the plan filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. No substantial changes or additions to the layout may be made without the approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code.

2. The new construction shall match the existing dwelling as nearly as practical.

781	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
782	Negative:		0
783	Absent:		0

The Board granted this request, as it found from the evidence presented that, due to the unique circumstances of the subject property, strict application of the County Code would produce undue hardship not generally shared by other properties in the area, and authorizing this variance will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjacent property nor materially impair the purpose of the zoning regulations.

A -143-2003

SUNTECH HOMES requests a variance from Section 24-95(q)(5) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 10600 Sherwin Place (Magnolia Ridge) (Parcel 781-769-9301), zoned R-3AC, One-family Residence District (Conditional) (Fairfield). The lot width requirement is not met. The applicant has 56 feet lot width, where the Code requires 60 feet lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 4 feet lot width.

Upon a motion by Mr. Balfour, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **deferred** application **A-143-2003** for a variance to build a one-family dwelling at 10600 Sherwin Place (Magnolia Ridge) (Parcel 781-769-9301). The case was deferred from the December 18, 2003, until the January 22, 2004, meeting at the request of the applicant.

804	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
805	Negative:		0
806	Absent:		0

A -144-2003

RCI BUILDERS requests a variance from Sections 24-95(k) and 24-95(2) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 1800 Terrace Avenue (Hermitage Club Terrace) (Parcel 782-750-2829), zoned R-2, One-family Residence District (Fairfield). The minimum side yard setback on a reverse corner and rear yard setback are not met. The applicant has 17 feet rear

814		setback, and 23 feet side yard setback, where the Code
815	•	es 25 feet rear yard setback and 25 feet side yard setback.
816		pplicant requests a variance of 8 feet rear yard setback and 2
817	feet si	de yard setback.
818		
819	Mr. Wright -	Would the applicant please come down to the podium. Does
820	•	ak with respect to this case. Would you all please raise your
821	right hand and be sworn a	t the same time.
822		
823	•	Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the
824	truth, the whole truth, and	nothing but the truth, so help you God?
825		
826	•	I do. My name is Todd Rogers, with RCI Builders. We're
827		the side yard and rear setback. It's an irregular-shaped lot.
828		ellent job in describing the whole situation, but just to highlight
829		-foot side yard along Club Road, which is unimproved at this
830		mall building envelope. We're proposing to build a 30 by 24,
831	two-story on that lot, which	n would be somewhat the size and so forth of other houses in
832		u can tell by the plat, the buildable area, with the dotted line
833	through there, we are end	roaching a couple of feet on the side yard and about 7.7 feet
834	on the rear yard of one c	orner. The other corner of the house actually fits within the
835	building setback. Due to	the irregular shape of the lot and it being a corner lot, it does
836	push us into the side and i	ear yard setbacks.
837		
838	Mr. Wright -	Mr. Blankinship, could they build a house on this particular
839	lot without needing a varia	nce?
840	_	
841	Mr. Blankinship -	It would be a small and oddly shaped house, but it would be
842	possible, yes.	
843		
844	Mr. Wright -	It wouldn't be in keeping with the neighborhood?
845	· ·	·
846	Mr. Blankinship -	Probably not. I don't have a scale on here. You're looking
847	•	20 feet deep, which would probably be out of place.
848	Ğ	
849	Mr. Wright -	Just looking at the picture, these look like fairly large houses.
850	3	5 1 , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
851	Mr. Kirkland -	Mr. Rogers, are you purchasing this lot pending this
852	variance?	33 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 - 7 -
853		
854	Mr. Rogers -	Yes sir.
855		
856	Mr. Kirkland -	You don't own it already then?
857		
858	Mr. Rogers -	No sir.

860	Mr. McKinney -	How many square feet in this house, Mr. Rogers?	
861 862 863	Mr. Rogers -	There will be 1440 square feet in the house.	
864 865	Mr. Wright -	Any smaller than that, and you couldn't turn around in it.	
866 867	Mr. McKinney -	I just finished one over there that was 1256.	
868 869	Mr. Wright -	Any further questions of the Board or the staff?	
870 871	Mr. McKinney -	Will this be vinyl siding?	
872 873	Mr. Rogers -	Yes sir.	
874 875	Mr. McKinney -	How about the foundation?	
876 877	Mr. Rogers -	Brick foundation.	
878 879	Mr. Wright -	If there is anyone here in opposition, please come forward.	
880 881 882 883 884 885 886 887 888 890 891 892 893 894	Ms. Genier - Good morning. My name is Judy Genier; I've lived in this neighborhood, my family home, for 50 years. Presently I'm taking care of my 87-year-old father. Most of the houses in this neighborhood have been here for 50 years, and they're brick. Our house happens to have a brick front and siding on it. This is a very small lot. Along one edge there's not even a County road; there's just a driveway that goes down to Deloris Hartman's little property, and she has had hip surgery and so she could not attend today. She's not willing to give up any of her land, because she doesn't have but a little bit to begin with, and she's leaving it to her son and her grandson. She already does not want it to encroach on her property because it will go into her little driveway that she's got in this little cottage down here. If it's a two-story house, it won't match the neighborhood, because all the rest of the houses are one story. It also will sit right on Belmont Golf Course, and there will be golf balls in the windows constantly, because we pick up golf balls all along that area every day. The golfers just hit their balls into the property.		
895 896	Mr. Wright -	I couldn't believe that.	
897 898	Ms. Genier -	Sir, I'll bring you some golf balls.	
899 900	Mr. Wright -	I'm being facetious; I'm a golfer.	
901 902 903	Ms. Genier - day.	I know, because I saw you out on the golf course the other	
904 905	Mr. Kirkland -	What is the address of where you are?	

906 907 908 909 910 911 912 913	street; that's why I'm here that are right across the s passed away, she left the t to build the family home.	I'm at 1805 Terrace Avenue, which would be right across the e, because my sister and I own the three pieces of property street from the wooded piece of property. When my mother three lots that we had bought when we bought all of those lots. Our three lots actually could have a house put on them, and because again, it would be sitting right on the golf course in
914 915	Mr. Kirkland -	Was that 1801? What's the address of those three lots?
916 917 918 919		Yes, it's 1801, because my house is the 1805 house, and ots that we have right beside our house, and then across the
920 921	Mr. Wright -	You say yours is a single-family, one floor?
922 923 924	Ms. Genier - my father, and I have to ha	Yes, it's a one floor, because like I said, I'm taking care of eve him in a wheelchair.
925 926	Mr. Wright -	Do you use the upstairs any?
927 928 929	Ms. Genier - an attic up there.	There is only an attic, and we never go up in it, but there is
930 931	Mr. McKinney -	There are no two-story houses in that neighborhood at all?
932 933	Ms. Genier -	No sir.
934 935 936	Mr. Wright - dormers on them; I'm just I	That's unusual. Looks like there are some that have ooking down on them.
937 938	Ms. Genier -	What are dormers sir?
939 940	Mr. Blankinship -	Little windows up on the roof.
941 942	Ms. Genier -	They are.
943 944 945	•	They build it so that you can use that area up in the peak of s, if you have a house like that.
946 947 948 949 950	house. Our house is proba	Yes sir. A lot of the houses on the street that we're on are amily houses that were built in the '50's when we built our ably one of the largest houses in the area, because my father all brick homes that have been there forever.
951	Mr. Wright -	There's not a house on 1802 either, is there, across the

952 953	street from you. The trees	are heavy there.
954 955 956 957 958 959	the back, Mrs. Hartman's I not willing. I don't underst	Yes sir, there's a house there. The only open lot is this little ere are houses all around there, and like I said, the house at house, she's been there as long as we have, and she's really tand, on a variance, does she receive money for this land, or it away, whether she wants to or not?
960 961 962 963 964	thing that's changing is, th has the authority to reliev	There's no land going to change hands, ma'am. The only e Code requires certain setbacks and so forth, and the Board e that requirement on these builders, but nobody's property no land is going to change hands.
965 966 967	Ms. Genier - is a blind corner here. Wh	Okay, so where will the cars go down this dirt road, and this ere will, there's a lot of traffic on this blind corner here.
968 969	M. Wright -	Which dirt road are you referring to?
970 971 972	Ms. Genier - paved road. Club Road be	The dirt road goes down in front of the house; it's not a ecomes dirt right there at the corner; it is not paved.
973 974	Mr. Blankinship -	It won't change as a result of this hearing.
975 976	Mr. Wright -	Nothing will change on that.
977 978 979 980	5 5	Okay, so if we have another house on that corner, how are already problems of the blind corner and people coming nake more congestion instead of less.
981 982	Mr. Blankinship -	Probably.
983 984 985	Mr. McKinney - R-2?	Mr. Secretary, what's the minimum lot size for R-2A or just
986 987 988	Mr. Blankinship - slender lot, or not? I guess	I was just looking it up. Is there a house at 7104, that little s there is not, is that right?
989 990 991 992	Ms. Genier - Chandler house is on this a lot?	I would think that Deloris' house is on this 102, and then the big piece of property; I don't know what that little 104 is. It is
993 994	Mr. Blankinship -	Minimum lot size is 18,000 square feet.
995 996	Mr. McKinney -	No, I'm talking about the house.
997	Mr. Blankinship -	That's, I think, 1200.

998	NA 12'	40000 1 11 4400 40000	
999 1000	McKinney -	1200? Is it 1100 or 1200?	
1000	Mr. Blankinship -	R-2 would be actually 1500.	
1002	r	,	
1003	Mr. McKinney -	Then he's not actually building enough.	
1004	Mr. Plankinchin	R-3 is 1100.	
1005 1006	Mr. Blankinship -	R-3 IS 1100.	
1007	Mr. McKinney -	He said the house's square footage is 1440.	
1008	·		
1009	Mr. Kirkland -	So he's 60 under.	
1010 1011	Mr. Blankinship -	We haven't reviewed a building permit or anything, but that	
1011	•	nce application, so he would be required to meet the Code	
1013	requirements.		
1014	NA NA 17'		
1015 1016	Mr. McKinney -	So he's got to go up another 60 square feet somewhere. e in your house, Ms. Genier?	
1016	Tiow many square reet are	e in your nouse, wis. Genier!	
1018	Ms. Genier -	I really don't know sir. My father built it; it's a three-bedroom	
1019		an addition on the back of it that he built a long time ago for	
1020	my mother. A lot of this ha	appened after I left. I'm only back now to take care of him.	
1021 1022	Mr. McKinney -	So that was his house, and you moved back in to take care	
1023	of him?	The first fields, and you moved back in to take our	
1024			
1025	Ms. Genier -	Yes sir, this is the house that my sister and I were raised in,	
1026 1027	in the 50's, and then of course we went off and had our life, and now he either goes into a nursing home or I come back and take care of him, so I've been back three years.		
1027	a nursing nome or r come	back and take care of fillin, so I've been back timee years.	
1029	Mr. Wright -	Is there much traffic on Club Road, on that dirt road?	
1030	_		
1031	Ms. Genier -	Yes sir, no, not on that dirt road, there wouldn't be any traffic	
1032 1033		o visit Deloris. The problem is this corner right here, because, stop and park down beside the golf course. They like to park	
1033	•	a blind corner right here at the end. Our bushes are causing	
1035	•	it they've gotten out of control.	
1036			
1037	Mr. Wright -	These other houses, 7102, and 7104, and 7156, all use Club	
1038 1039	Road for access?		
1039	Ms. Genier -	No sir, what happened was when you go down past the	
1041		to Deloris's at 7102, at 7101 there's a fence because this is a	
1042	dirt road back down in the	ere. To get to the other part of Club Road you have to come	
1043	around from the other side	e and come in. You cannot go straight through Club Road.	

1044		
1045	Mr. McKinney	It's blocked off?
1046		
1047	Ms. Genier -	Yes sir.
1048		
1049		So you're talking about the site distance between Terrace
1050	Avenue and Deloris's hour	se at 7102?
1051	_	
1052	Ms. Genier -	Yes sir. According to what you have here on the map, from
1053		eloris's house, is a little driveway, a graveled road, and then
1054		e Chandler's have got a fence up, and there's like a ditch, and
1055	the rest of Club Road swir	ngs around from the other part of
1056	NA - NAA	0 7404 (Ol b D d - V- b d
1057	Mr. Wright -	So you can't access 7104 from Club Road. You have to
1058	come around.	
1059	Mr. Makinnov	According to this parial view we have we have a sight
1060	Mr. McKinney -	According to this aerial view we have, we have a sight
1061	Avenue, there's certainly r	ad all the way to Terrace Avenue. When you get to Terrace
1062 1063	Avenue, mere's certainly i	10 Site distance to 7 102.
1063	Ms. Genier -	I'm not understanding your question. See how the road
1064	ends right there?	Thi not understanding your question. See now the road
1066	chas right there:	
1067	Mr. McKinney -	You said it ends at 7102, correct?
1068	iii. iiioi iiiioj	104 0414 16 01140 46 1 102, 0011006.
1069	Ms. Genier -	The picture right there is where it ends; the dirt road begins
1070		ace road ends, which is right at that corner. Terrace Road
1071	•	Road begins right at that little corner.
1072		o o
1073	Mr. Kirkland -	Mr. Blankinship, is 7104 and 7102 one lot?
1074		
1075	Mr. Blankinship -	It looks like it. It looks like the buildings actually straddles
1076	that.	
1077		
1078	Mr. Kirkland -	In the aerial, I see the car and the house sticking over that.
1079		
1080	Ms. Genier -	Oh, yes sir, I guess it is. I see Deloris's
1081		
1082	Mr. Kirkland -	The fence line across Club would be at the 7104 line?
1083		V
1084	Ms. Genier -	Yes sir, I see Deloris's little house now.
1085	Ma Maleinaa	And you said Was fance comes Club Dood?
1086	Mr. McKinney -	And you said it's a fence across Club Road?
1087	Ms. Genier -	Volumery to understand that when you got to the corner of
1088 1089		You have to understand that when you get to the corner of ere, which is the end of Deloris's property, and that's the
1009	rio i , meres a unon me	ore, without is the end of Delons's property, and that's the

Chandler's house there, and yes, there is a fence there, and you cannot drive a car 1090 1091 through. 1092 1093 Mr. McKinney -Who put the fence up? 1094 Ms. Genier -I don't know. I thought the Chandlers had the right to put the 1095 fence up there. 1096 1097 Mr. McKinney -But this is a private road, I presume. 1098 1099 1100 Mr. Blankinship -It's not a County road. It's shown as a County right-of-way. It's not maintained, but it shows on the map as a County road. 1101 1102 Mr. Kirkland -1103 It would definitely be closer for a fire truck to go one end to the other 1104 1105 Mr. McKinney -That's what I say. If a fire truck comes down off Hilliard 1106 Road, they'd get in there and run into a fence. 1107 1108 1109 Ms. Genier -You're right, and this past year, they did come in and they upgraded our water system, because we weren't even up to standards on our fire 1110 hydrants, and so everything has been upgraded in there, and if necessary, the fire truck 1111 could just ride right through the wooden fence, but I don't want to be a part of that. 1112 That's a whole another story. 1113 1114 Mr. McKinney -Mr. Blankinship, you said that the applicant could build a 1115 smaller house on this lot if he wasn't granted a variance. How could he build a smaller 1116 1117 1118 Mr. Blankinship -He would have to meet the minimum, 1500 square feet. 1119 1120 1121 Mr. McKinney -Are you saying that he could build a 1500 square-foot house.? 1122 1123 Mr. Blankinship -I'm not really prepared to answer that question. If you want, 1124 we can do some research into that. 1125 1126 Mr. Wright -It does look like the line, it cuts across, you've got sort of 1127 corners that are in violation. That would be an odd-looking house if you had to make it 1128 to fit that envelope. 1129 1130 Ms. Genier -1131 I just want to know where they would park the cars, because there is no space to park the cars on that dirt road, so where are we going to park cars? 1132 1133 1134 Mr. McKinney -I'm sure he'll address that, probably with a driveway 1135

1136 Mr. Wright - He'd have to have a driveway into his place.

Ms. Genier - No, there's not enough room in there for a driveway, not if he's going to use all of the land for a house.

1141 Mr. McKinney - He's not going to use all the land.

Mr. Wright - See that map up there? A driveway could be put in off of Terrace right back to the house, right there. I don't see where that would present a problem. That's up to him. Thank you very much. Anyone else in opposition? Hearing none, then you have a chance to rebut.

Mr. Rogers - Yes sir, we were under the impression, obviously wrong, that this was in an R-2 Exception area, which was, my understanding is, recorded prior to the '50's, which allows for smaller lots, and therefore, the 11,000 square-foot lot requirement is what the County Assessors Office said that it was, in an R-2 Exception area, which we interpreted that to be under today's R-3 house size area. That's why the difference, and that's our misunderstanding if we're incorrect as far as the house size goes.

(unintelligible – too many voices)

Mr. Blankinship - No, the exception standards do relieve the lot area, but it states in there that the square footage.

Mr. Rogers - Again, that's our mistake. One thing we can do with this, and again, someone stated that we'd have to be back through you guys again because of that, we have a plan that's the same building envelope, but we add a third floor on it. It's a dormered-type third floor that would certainly be more than the required 60 more square feet without making our building envelope any larger and therefore not encroaching any more on the setbacks.

Mr. McKinney - Mr. Rogers, would you like to defer this and get that squared away and come back to us so you don't have to pay an extra \$300?

Mr. Rogers - If that would be good. What I'm saying is if a 2 ½-story would work, then we can use the same building envelope. Again, I think the planner has said at this point, they haven't reviewed the building plans yet, so that's not part of the request today, and if we could have a 2 ½-story, which would finish at least 60 more square feet in the third floor, which obviously it would be much more than that, because you wouldn't just finish a small 60 square feet somewhere, we wouldn't impact the building area at all, so the variance would still be okay as far as through you, and then we'd have to get the plan approved through the normal building permit process.

Mr. Blankinship - Let me just throw out that one third of that finished floor area can be unfinished, but able to be finished.

1100				
1182	Mr. Decree	On the head side of the house if you noticed there's a little		
1183	Mr. Rogers -	On the back side of the house, if you noticed, there's a little		
1184	offset coming on the back there. That's actually an outside storage area, which we			
1185	could actually make that,	and again it's shown as part of the building footprint, and I		
1186	believe that's eight by fiv	e right now, so that wasn't included in the 1440 that I said		
1187	before.			
1188				
1189	Mr. Blankinship -	You could extend that without increasing the degree of the		
1190	variance.	Tod bodid exteria that without moredoing the degree of the		
1191	variance.			
	Mr. Dogoro	Correct We could extend that to the right maybe and make		
1192	Mr. Rogers -	Correct. We could extend that to the right maybe and make		
1193	•	vould get us, we could increase it to the point where we could		
1194	get the 1500 square feet.			
1195				
1196	Mr. Kirkland -	Where do you intend to put the driveway?		
1197				
1198	Mr. Rogers -	The driveway would come off of Terrace and come to either		
1199	the left side of the hous	se or the right side of the house, depending on, this is a		
1200		could put it either way. Normally when we have a situation		
1201	•	vay the furthest away from the intersection, so it would be on		
1202	the left side of the house.	ray are ranarest array from are intereseasin, so it means so on		
1202	the left side of the flouse.			
1203	Mr. Wright -	So you wouldn't be using Club Road?		
	wii. wrigiit -	30 you wouldn't be using Glub Road!		
1205	Mr. Dogoro	No air wa wauldn't affact anything an Club Dood		
1206	Mr. Rogers -	No sir, we wouldn't affect anything on Club Road.		
1207	Ma Maldiana.	What will this have a manufact for O		
1208	Mr. McKinney -	What will this house market for?		
1209	5	0 1 1 4 00		
1210	Mr. Rogers -	Somewhere in the \$160's.		
1211				
1212	Mr. McKinney -	Mr. Blankinship, what he's proposing now, does he need to		
1213	come back to us?			
1214				
1215	Mr. Blankinship -	It's up to him. Personally, I like your suggestion that he		
1216	defer, take a month to fig	ure this thing out, and then make sure that everyone knows		
1217		when the vote is taken, but that's at the Board's discretion. I		
1218	think he could find a solution	·		
1219	amment of our and a condu			
1220	Mr. Wright -	I think that we ought to know what he's going to put up, and		
1220	how it would impact on the			
	now it would impact on the	s surrounding properties.		
1222	Mr. Makinnay	Have you had an appartupity to most with Ma. Capiar?		
1223	Mr. McKinney-	Have you had an opportunity to meet with Ms. Genier?		
1224	Mr. Deger	No air I have not I had alt be and of one access?		
1225	Mr. Rogers -	No sir, I have not. I hadn't heard of any opposition.		
1226	NA - NA -12'	The second of th		
1227	Mr. McKinney -	If you defer this for a month, maybe you could sit down and		

come to some terms. Would you like to defer it?

1229

1230 Mr. Rogers -

Sure, I'd love to defer it.

1231 1232

1233

1234

1235

Upon a motion by Mr. Nunnally, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board **deferred** application **A-144-2003** for a variance to build a one-family dwelling at 1800 Terrace Avenue (Hermitage Club Terrace) (Parcel 782-750-2829). The case was deferred from the December 18, 2003, until the January 22, 2004, meeting at the request of the applicant for additional time to prepare a variance request.

1236 1237

1237

1239

Affirmative: Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright 5
Negative: 0
Absent:

1240 1241

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1242 **A -145-2003**

BILLY E. STANDLEY, JR. requests a variance from Section 24-95(i)2 of Chapter 24 of the County Code to allow the accessory building to remain at 10007 Falconbridge Drive (Raintree East) (Parcel 747-750-1684), zoned R-2A, One-family Residence District (Tuckahoe). The accessory structure location requirement is not met. The applicant proposes to build an addition that will result in the existing garage being in the side yard. The Code allows accessory structures in the rear yard. The applicant requests a variance to allow the existing garage to remain.

125012511252

1253

Mr. Wright - Does anyone else desire to speak? Would you raise your right hand and be sworn please?

12541255

Mr. Blankinship - Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

125612571258

1259

1260

1261

1262

1263

1264

1265

1266

1267

1268

1269

1270

1271

1272

1273

Mr. Standley -My name is Billy E. Standley, Jr. Good morning, I do. Gentlemen. My wife and I and our family have lived in this home for approximately twelve years. It's a four-bedroom, two-story Colonial saltbox type of dwelling, and we are at a point of making a decision in regards to our home. We have seven children, so it's become rather crowded as they have gotten larger. We looked at moving, but we like the neighborhood. Our kids are in the Raintree Swim Team, Deep Run Park is right across Ridgefield Parkway, so we like the area and have become attached to it. What we're proposing is to build a 20 by 24, two-story extension, which will "T" with the main portion of the house, to create a larger family room, allow us to convert the current family room to a dining room and then there's a side portion of the house that's one story, where the current family room is, and to dormer that to make an additional bedroom. The difficulty we were posed with is the original owner, Mr. Whitaker, in 1988, built a detached garage, which is pretty much exactly ten feet behind and offset from the side of the house. I was informed that to build the addition, we would then be in violation of the Code, in that it would change the detached in the rear of the home characterization for the garage. What we're petitioning for is a variance to allow us to

- build the addition on the home, but change the characterization of the detached garage, since it will no longer be behind the back plane of the home.
- 1276 1277
- 1277 Mr. Balfour The plan, it looks like, is to remove the pool and leave the deck, not the deck around the pool, but the deck at the corner of the house.

Mr. Standley - Yes sir, that's correct. My five- and seven-year-olds are aghast at the idea of losing the pool, but it's served its purpose. It's fifteen years old, and the intent is we'll have a deck that will extend from the family room on the side, such that it will be the deck area, and the main structure will "T" in with the two-story portion of the home.

1285

1286

1287

1288

Mr. Balfour - How much beyond the deck is it extended? I can't quite tell from your plans. You've got a deck already there, and you've got the addition coming out beside the deck. The plans look like it extends slightly beyond the deck, but even with the garage, is that right? I'm looking at your plans; it's the last page.

1289 1290

Mr. Standley -Correct. It won't touch the garage; it'll be approximately 1291 twelve feet away from the garage. The only other comment I have is that I spoke with 1292 Mr. Blankinship before the meeting, and I may have erred when I was looking, because 1293 we haven't employed an architect yet, because we wanted to make sure we could 1294 proceed before we did so, but part of the plan was to have a country wrap-around porch 1295 on the front and side next to the driveway. On side setback, I'm okay, but I am 1296 concerned now that perhaps I'm not going to meet the front setback with that front 1297 1298 porch.

1299

1300 Mr. Wright - What size of front porch did you envision?

1301

Mr. Standley - A six-foot wide covered porch that would elbow around the front and then the side of the driveway, and that way we would have cover over both the side door adjacent to the home at the driveway, and where it shows the current brick stoop.

1306

1307 Mr. Wright - Is he saying, Mr. Blankinship, that the porch would meet the Code, or that it would not meet it?

1309

Mr. Blankinship - It does not sound like it would, and he came in this morning to discuss deferring to have that advertised and notified along with this part of the request.

1313

1314 Mr. Standley - That was definitely my error, because my neighbors have a porch, and I erroneously assumed that that was not a spacing issue, because we're directly in plane with them, but I am desirous not to have to come back again and pay another \$300.

1318

1319 Mr. Wright - Do you want to defer the case?

1320			
1321	Mr. McKinney -	You don't have to pay \$300 if you want to defer it.	
1322			
1323	Mr. Standley -	I believe that is the most appropriate to determine w	vhere I
1324	stand on the porch	l.	
1325	•		
1326	Upon a motion b	by Mr. Balfour, seconded by Mr. McKinney, the Board de	ferred
1327		-2003 for a variance to allow the accessory building to rem	
1328		ge Drive (Raintree East) (Parcel 747-750-1684. The cas	
1329		December 18, 2003, until the January 22, 2004, meeting	
1330		licant for additional time to prepare a variance request.	
1331	roquoot or are upp.	incarit ret additional time to propare a variation request.	
1332	Affirmative:	Balfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally, Wright	5
1333	Negative:		0
1334	Absent:		0
1335	ADSCIII.		U
1336	A -146-2003	C B RICHARD ELLIS requests a variance from Section	n 21-
1337	A -140-2003	104(g)(2)(5) of Chapter 24 of the County Code to Install dire	
1337		signs at 1501 Santa Rosa Road (Koger Office Center) (F	
		758-744-8530, 758-743-8194, 759-745-5902, 759-744-341	
1339		·	
1340		758-743-7963), zoned O-2, Office District (Three Chopt). The applicant proposed	_
1341		area requirement is not met. The applicant propose	
1342		directional signs up to 17 square feet in area totaling 63	•
1343		feet, where the Code allows directional signs up to 3 squa	
1344		totaling up to 30 square feet. The applicant requests variar	
1345		14 square feet in area for each sign and 33 square	reet in
1346		aggregate area for the five signs.	
1347			
1348	Mr. Wright -	Mr. Secretary, I have to disqualify myself on the nex	t case,
1349	so I'm going to ask	Mr. Nunnally to take over, and I will leave the premises.	
1350			
1351	Mr. Nunnally -	Do we have any other people here to are incident	
1352		? Please come forward. Would you raise your right hand a	and be
1353	sworn please?		
1354			
1355	Mr. Blankinship -	Do you swear that the testimony you are about to give	e is the
1356	truth, the whole tru	th, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?	
1357			
1358	Mr. Foley -	I do. I'm Jay Foley, and I work for Carousel Signs, a	ınd I'm
1359	representing C. B.	Richard Ellis on this matter. Mr. Blankinship may be able to e	explain
1360	this a little better.	Basically, the office park is allowed directional signage. The	sum of
1361	that signage in ter	rms of square footage is thirty square feet. Obviously, in this	case,
1362		The sum of what we're providing is 63. In your packet, we're I	
1363	<u> </u>	signs that would have labeled the actual building numbers. The	_
1364		Itiple smaller signs and be allowed to do that. May I send you	
1365	paperwork that I br	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

1366	M. M.Z.	NA Fala da
1367	Mr. McKinney -	Mr. Foley, why does this sign say "Forest Office Park"? Is it
1368	being sold?	
1369		
1370	Mr. Foley -	That is the name of the office park now.
1371		
1372	Mr. McKinney -	That's the new name of it?
1373		
1374	Mr. Foley -	Yes sir. In fact, there's one large ID sign out on Three Chopt
1375	right now that reads " For	est Office Park," and that's really the only signage identifying
1376	the entire park.	
1377	·	
1378	Mr. McKinney -	There are a lot of buildings in there you can't find.
1379	Ž	,
1380	Mr. Foley -	It's pretty tough. Just to let you know, I believe there is a
1381		ing with C. B. Richard Ellis; they represent the owner, and I
1382	_	to upgrade this property, as far as making it easier for people
1383	, , ,	oing to send is the design of what we want to do, versus what
1384	•	o. If we are allowed to do this, there would be a total of 22 7-
1385		Il signs, versus what we're proposing, would be five. We've
1386	•	superimposed what the signs would look like legally, or by
1387	Code, and what we would	
1388	Code, and what we would	like to do.
	Mr. McKinney -	Do you have five sets of those?
1389	Wii. Wickiniey -	Do you have live sets of those?
1390	Mr. Foley -	No sir.
1391	Mi. Foley -	INO SII.
1392	Mr. Kirkland -	Are those signs going to be lit at night?
1393	IVII. KII KIATIU -	Are these signs going to be lit at night?
1394	Mr. Folov	Dight now no air. If they are that would be up to them to
1395	Mr. Foley -	Right now, no sir. If they are, that would be up to them to
1396	•	h building, we have applied for and obtained permits for each
1397		o sign. This is what that will look like. These will be installed
1398		very building will have its own ID, to see how this ties in to the
1399		map with the 22's on it, that would be 22 smaller directional
1400	signs.	
1401		
1402	Mr. Kirkland -	Mr. Blankinship, all these signs won't be in any site distance,
1403	or is there anything when t	they are placed, will they?
1404		
1405	Mr. Blankinship -	That's one of the conditions that I think that we've proposed,
1406		d to keep them out of the site distance triangle and out of the
1407	right-of-way.	
1408		
1409	Mr. Nunnally -	You say you're going to put a total of five signs out there?
1410		
1411	Mr. Foley -	Yes sir, we're looking to do five.

1412	Ma Dalfa	Variable and the conditions O	
1413	Mr. Balfour -	You've read the conditions?	
1414			.,
1415	Mr. Foley -	Yes sir. In fact, when we set these out on the	site map,
1416	they're all outside of the	ne 20-foot site triangle.	
1417			
1418	Mr. Nunnally -	Any other questions from the Board? Staff? D	o we have
1419	any opposition?		
1420			
1421	After an advertised p	ublic hearing and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, second	ded by Mr.
1422	McKinney, the Boar	d granted application A-146-2003 for a variance	to Install
1423		501 Santa Rosa Road (Koger Office Center) (Parcel	
1424		759-745-5902, 759-744-3417 and 758-743-7963).	
1425		subject to the following conditions:	
1426	grammed and ramamed a	y and the second	
1427	1. Only the signs	shown on the plan filed with the application may be o	onstructed
1427	, ,	oval. No substantial changes or additions to the layo	
1429		approval of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any	•
1429		omply with the applicable regulations of the County Code	
	improvements shall co	oniply with the applicable regulations of the County Cou	Ե.
1431	2 The signs shall	he leasted outside the atract rights of way, and shall n	at interfore
1432		be located outside the street rights-of-way, and shall n	ot interiere
1433	with sight distance at	the intersections.	
1434	A.C.:		
1435		alfour, Kirkland, McKinney, Nunnally	4
1436	Negative:		0
1437	Abstain: W	/right	1
1438			
1439	•	s request, as it found from the evidence presented that,	
1440	unique circumstances	s of the subject property, strict application of the Co	unty Code
1441	would produce undue	hardship not generally shared by other properties in the	e area, and
1442	authorizing this variar	nce will neither cause a substantial detriment to adjace	nt property
1443	nor materially impair the	he purpose of the zoning regulations.	
1444			
1445	On a motion by Mr.	Nunnally, seconded by Mr. Kirkland, the Board app	roved the
1446	_	t 28, 2003, Henrico County Board of Zoning Appeals me	
1447	S	, , ,	J
1448	There being no further	er business, and on a motion by Mr. Kirkland, second	ded by Mr
1449	•	adjourned until January 22, 2004 , at 9:00 am.	20 2 y
1450	moraline, are beara	adjourned until variatity 12, 200 1, at 0.00 and	
1430			
1451		Russell A. Wright,	
1451		Chairman	
		Gilaiiiiaii	
1453			
1454		Deniemie Diankinskie AIOD	
1455		Benjamin Blankinship, AICP	
1456		Secretary	